
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

                                                                        MAY 7, 2012 

6:30 P.M.                                                                           

 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE       

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / April 16, 2012 

 

 

RECOGNIZE:    Bayside Academy Chess Team                        

 

PRESENTATION:    March of Dimes / Jennifer Bitner 

 

PRESENTATION:     Huntingdon College / Candi Lake 

 

PROCLAMATIONS:     National Police Week   /   May 13-19, 2012 

                                           National Correctional Officer Week   /   May 7-12, 2012       

 

                                    

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware    

           

1.) Ordinances: 

a.)      Appropriation of Funds: Main Street Resurfacing   /   Ordinance 2012 -32 

b.) Appropriation of Funds: Well Road Extension to Hwy 13 / Ordinance 2012-33 

 

2.) Resolutions: 

a.) Bid Award: Main Street Resurfacing / Hosea O. Weaver & Sons, Inc.  /  Resolution 2012-34 

b.) Bid Award: Well Road Extension to Hwy 13 /  Asphalt Services, Inc. /   Resolution 2012-35 

 

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Lake        

          Review minutes / April 2
nd

          

   

 C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –   Boulware                   

    D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Reese  

    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  - Conaway   

          Review minutes / March 19
th
  

          Review Beautification minutes   / April 6
th
  

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones  

          Nomination:  Larry Gilbert Cooke   /   Replacement for Tony Felts Position (Supernumerary) 

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette       

          Review minutes / April 23
rd

  

               

    C.  Industrial Development Board –  Conaway             

    D.  Library Board – Lake   

  E.  Planning Commission – Barnette       
          Review minutes / March 22

nd
  

          Set a Public Hearing date for June 4, 2012 to consider: 

          Amending the Land Use and Development Ordinance: 

a.)  Landscape Provisions / 19-8(b) 

b.) Communications Tower Provisions / Add Section 32-3(d)(3)(i) 

 
1



 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                    MAY 7, 2012                                      PAGE   2 

 

   F.  Recreation Board – Reese        

    G.  Utility Board - Scott   

           Review Special meeting minutes April 4
th 

  (for March meeting) 

           Review minutes April 24
th
  

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayor’s Report    
     B.  City Attorney’s Report  

C. Department Head Comments    

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:              

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

     

RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Bid Award:  Main Street Resurfacing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-34 

 

b.)  Bid Award: Well Road Extension to Hwy 13 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-35 

     

c.)  Set 2
nd

 Public Hearing for 2012 International Building Codes  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-36 

 

d.)  Set 2
nd

 Public Hearing for 2012 International Fire Code . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-37 

 

e.)   Authorize Application for Recreational Trails Grant / 

       Connect Westside of US Hwy 98 to Gator Alley. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-38 

 

  ORDINANCES: 

 

         2
ND

 READ 

a.)   Appropriation of Funds: Assistance to Firefighters Grant Award. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-30 

 

b.)   Appropriation of Funds: Profit Road Extension & Lake Forest: 

       Ridgewood Drive / Phase II: For Design & Engineering. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-31 

       

 

       1
ST

 READ 
c.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Main Street Resurfacing. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-32 

 

d.)  Appropriation of Funds: Well Road Extension to Hwy 13. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-33 

 

 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 

2



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES   
 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY               PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN REESE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCIMAN BOULWARE     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN PALUMBO   PRESENT       ABSENT         

    

MAYOR 

 

MAYOR YELDING    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

CITY CLERK: 

 

DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    

 

 

MINUTE NOTES: 

 

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

3



                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

 

      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

NOTES: 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                   

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                                                             

4



APRIL 16, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Invocation was given by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; Ron 

Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo. 

 

Also present: Mayor Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, 

City Attorney; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Richard Johnson, Publics Works Director; Christine 

Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; James White, Fire Chief; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; 

David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Vickie Hinman, Human 

Resources Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Captain Scott Taylor, Police Department; Ashley 

Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Officer Kevin Willingham, Police Department; Dorothy 

Morrison, Beautification Committee; Willie Robison, BZA. 

 

Absent: David Carpenter, Police Chief; Kim Briley, Finance Director. 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt the April 2, 2012 council meeting minutes.     

Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt the March 12, 2012 Council Work Session minutes.  

Seconded by Councilman Reese. 

 

Councilman Palumbo amended the minutes the change the rate of turnover mentioned by Mr. 

King from 4% to 10%. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Lake, Reese, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette                        ABSTAIN    Scott  

 

                           NAY    NONE OPPSOED                            MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

Council President Barnette introduced Ms. Katherine Pearl who spoke to council regarding 

speeding traffic on McAdams Avenue.  She related an incident where her lawn man was hit by a car 

coming around his parked truck as he was blowing leaves.  She said that the speeding issue has been 

raised before, and it is still taking place.  It is a rapid incline, and she thinks people gain a lot of speed 

coming up it, and basically fly through before they come to a stop sign, which is questionable 

whether the stop sign is run repeatedly at the top.  In the middle of the two (2) stop signs that were  

5



APRIL 16, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

placed where McAdams and McMillan start where they form a Y basically, and then one at 6
th

 Street 

and McAdams there is vast amount of speeding between the two (2) stop signs speeding to go uphill 

or gaining speed as they go downhill.  The neighborhood would like some assistance in trying to 

alleviate the problem. 

 

Council President Barnette said that they discussed this at the Public Works meeting, and Mr. 

Johnson suggested utilizing the thermoplasty strips in the short term much like they do at the traffic 

circle just to alert cars that there is a change in driving conditions, and Ms. Bishop has been called for 

Public Safety to further look at it, and utilize the Police Department for some D runs, and Ms. Pearl 

has offered the city her the use her driveway. 

 

 

4. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 
   A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE – Boulware 

The minutes for the April 9
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to accept the Treasurers report as of March 31, 2012, in 

the amount of $18,020,228.32.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

  

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

Lodging Tax Collections / February 29, 2012  

 

The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $47,346.50 collected for February 29, 2012. 

 

The next meeting will be May 14
th

 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

The minutes for the last meeting will be in the next packet.  The item that was forwarded to council 

will be on the next work session agenda. 

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Boulware 

The committee did not meet this month.  The next meeting will be the 2
nd

 Wednesday of May at 4:30 

in the Executive Conference room. 

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE –  Boulware 

The committee did not meet this month, but will meet next month following the Public Safety 

meeting. 

 

Councilman Scott requested the committee look at the charging a business license fee for vendors that 

come to the Jubilee Festival and other city events that are only a day or two long.  The ordinance needs 

clarification in that does the city need to have a special events license for these folks, or does the  

 

6



APRIL 16, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

 

person putting the event on need a business license and all the other vendors fall under his license like 

in real estate.  

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – Conaway 

The committee met this afternoon and the minutes will  be in the next packet.   

 

 

5.   REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

No report.  The board will meet on May 3
rd

 at 6:00 p.m.  The board needs a replacement for Tony 

Felts position.  

 

Councilman Boulware asked the City Clerk to check to see what district Mr. Felts was in. 

 

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette 

The next meeting will be Monday at 5:30 p.m. 

 

C. Industrial Development Board – Conaway 
No report. 

 

D. Library Board – Lake 

The board met last Thursday.  Councilman Lake stated that the council has an author among them, and 

maybe Mr. Palumbo could donate a book to the Library. 

 

E. Planning Commission – Barnette 

The Site Review meeting is Wednesday at 10:00, and the regular Planning Commission meeting is next 

Thursday at 5:00 p.m. 

 

F. Recreation Board - Reese 

No report. 

 

G. Utility Board – Scott 

The minutes for the February 29
th

 meeting are in the packet.   Councilman Scott stated that Mr. 

McElroy announced to the Daphne Utilities Board members that Partners for Environmental Progress 

has awarded Daphne Utilities the 2012 Environmental Stewardship Award for the recent upgrades to 

the Wastewater Treatment Plant, and the benefits of this project were to double the capacity for bio-

solid production enabling to make bio-solids that can be 100% used by golf courses and grass farms in 

the community.  They have eliminated the burn smell that has been produced at the plant for almost 20 

years. The upgrades have lowered the energy consumption by $60,000 per year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7



APRIL 16, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

 

6.  REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

    A.  Mayor’s Report 

 
           a.)   ABC License / Namans Catering / 140 - Special Events Retail   

           b.)   Parade Permit / March of Dimes /5K & 1 Mile Fun Walk / May 5, 2012  

            

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to approve the ABC License for Namans Catering / 140 – 

Special Events Retail and the Parade Permit for March of Dimes / 5K & 1Mile Fun Walk / May 

5, 2012.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

    B.  City Attorney Report 

No report. 

 

C. Department Head Comments: 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported that on Thursday April 19
th

 Brown Bag by the Bay 

@Centennial Park Delta Reign will be playing, and April 26
th

 Roman Street.  Sunday April 22
nd

 is the 

Sunday Sunset Series @Bay Front Park from 5:00 – 6:30 p.m.  Baldwin Pops will be playing.  

Saturday April 21
st
 Trione Sports Complex will host the 2012 LAX Jamboree from 9:00 a.m. – 4:00 

p.m. which will benefit the Coast Guard Foundation for the fallen Guardsmen.  There will be teams 

from Tallahassee, FL, Destin, FL and Gulf Breeze.  There will also be 18 teams from Ocean Springs, 

MS, Mobile, AL, North Shore, LA and LaFayette, LA. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director - reported they had the open house for Bay Front Park 

Pavilion on April 10
th

, and they are thinking of doing this once a quarter after hours for people who 

work.  There was a two (2) day OB/GYN Conference at the Civic Center.  The Ballroom Dance will 

be Saturday.  The election will be Tuesday, April 24
th

.  She also reported that there are only eight (8) 

Saturday’s left in the year to rent Bay Front Park Pavilion, and only three (3) Saturday left to rent the 

Civic Center for the year. 

 

Christine Ciancetta – Deputy Finance Director - reported that Mrs. Briley has been back to work and 

is focusing on closing FY11. 

 

Councilman Palumbo asked for an update on the use of credit cards. 

 

Ms. Ciancetta said that Mrs. Briley has directed her to focus on closing FY11 at this time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
8



APRIL 16, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

5 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Mr. Kevin Spriggs – owner of the Eastern Shore Motel -  spoke regarding adopting the 2012 

International Building and Fire Codes. 

 

 

 

8.   RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 
a.)   Schedule Public Hearing to Consider the Adoption of the 2012 International 

       Building codes as Amended by Reference. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-29 

 

b.)  Schedule Public Hearing to Consider the Adoption of the 2012 International 

       Fire Code as Amended by Reference . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-30 

     

c.)   Approve Application of U. S. Fish & Wildlife: Invasive Species Control 

       Project: Village Point/Bay Front Park . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-31 

 

d.)   Declaring Certain Property Surplus  / Donation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-32 

 

e.)   Declaring Certain Property Surplus . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-33 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to waive the reading of Resolutions 2012-29, 2012-30, 

2012-31, 2012-32 and 2012-33.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Resolution 2012-29.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED     
 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Resolution 2012-30.  Seconded by Councilman 

Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

9



APRIL 16, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

6 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Resolution 2012-31.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Resolutions 2012-32 and 2012-33.  Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Reese, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette   NAY    Lake 

 

                                                                MOTION CARRIED 
 

 

 

  ORDINANCES: 

       2
ND

 READ 
a.)   Authorizing the Issuance of General Obligation Refunding and  

       Improvement Warrants Series 2012 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-26 

 

b.)   Rezone: Blacksher White-Spunner, etal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-27 

 

c.)   Codification of Ordinances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-28 

 

1
ST

 READ 
d.)  Appropriation of Funds: Legislative / Purchase 2012 International Building 

       & Fire Code Books (3 each) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-29 

 

e.)   Appropriation of Funds: Assistance to Firefighters Grant Award . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-30 

 

f.)   Appropriation of Funds: Profit Road Extension & Lake Forest: 

       Ridgewood Drive / Phase II: For Design & Engineering . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-31 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2012-26.  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED              

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2012-26.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

              AYE    Conaway, Lake, Reese, Scott                               NAY    Boulware, Palumbo 

 

                                               MOTION CARRIED                                                                        

 

10



APRIL 16, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

7 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2012-27.  Seconded by 

Councilman Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2012-27  Seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to amend Ordinance 2012-27 to change the heading above the 

Description of Property to read Rezoned from R-3 to B-3.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2012-27 as amended.  Seconded by 

Councilman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading Ordinance 2012-28.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2012-28.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2012-29.  Seconded 

by Councilman Lake. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Conaway  Aye    Boulware  Aye 

Lake  Aye    Palumbo  Aye 

Reese  Aye    Barnette  Aye 

Scott  Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 
11



APRIL 16, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

8 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Ordinance 2012-29.  Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2012-29.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED    

 

Council discussed that the 2012 International Building and Fire Code Books would not be here 

three (3) weeks before the Public Hearing set for May 7
th

. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to amend the Public Hearing date for Resolutions 2012-29 and 

2012-30 from May 7, 2012 to May 21, 2012.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

Ordinances 2012-30 and 2012-31 were made 1
st
 Read. 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

 

8. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Councilwoman Conaway thanked Mr. McKelroy for a well-run Easter Egg Hunt.  She enjoyed it very 

much. 

 

Councilman Lake stated that the Building and Fire Codes were common sense codes. 

 

Councilman Boulware congratulated Mr. Reese on becoming a grandfather, and said that they were proud 

of Mr. Palumbo becoming an author. 

 

Councilman Palumbo stated for the record that several months ago with one of the first meetings with the 

new Mayor they were promised that a priority would be made out of the city adhering to its own ordinance 

to use credit cards for payments to the city, and he asked the Mayor to re-double his efforts to keep that 

promise. 

 

Council President Barnette stated that she has noticed, for Code Enforcement and the Mayor, that there is a 

proliferation of the vehicles parking in the medians again with the graphics on their vehicles on the 

weekends advertising their business.  She thinks they are in the public right-of-way, and if they could look 

into that and get that back into shape she would appreciate it. 

 

 

 

12



APRIL 16, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

9 

 

 

9. ADJOURN 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:12 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,    

                         

                             
________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        

City Clerk, MMC                 

                                                           Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 

 

       ________________________________                                                                              

       Cathy S. Barnette, 

       Council President  

13



14



15



16



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



 

 

 

P
ag

e1
 

Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 
Monday, April 2, 2012   5:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall 
 

Committee 
Councilman John Lake 

Councilman Derek Boulware 
Mayor Bailey Yelding, Jr. 

Richard Merchant, Building Official 
Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor 
Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director 

 
Committee Minutes (Summary) 

 
Present:   Margaret Thigpen, Frank Barnett, John Lake, Derek Boulware, Bailey Yelding, Jr., 
Richard Johnson, Jane Ellis, Richard Merchant, guest – Beth Moore. 
 

A.) Minutes from March Meeting: Motion made to approve minutes from March Meeting.  
Approved.   

 
B.)  New Building Codes – Richard Merchant met with the Mayor, Mayor Tillery from Bay 

Minette regarding all the municipalities in Baldwin County being united on adopting the 
new building codes.  It is important that the entire county be compliant to get the 
ratings.  There are other changes regarding energy efficiency which are good as well. 
Richard discussed the benefits (rates and costs) we hope to get – not guaranteed by the 
insurance industry – but hopefully.  He proposes that this item be placed on the a 
council work session – the council will decide if we adopt these new codes (mandatory 
vs. optional).  He would like to present it as a recommendation as it is certainly better 
for the city.   
 

Richard report on 7 new residentials with 73 permits for the month $17,400 is the city’s 
portion for a total of $2.25 million in business. 
 
Dollar Tree is proposing to come to Jubilee Square next to Firehouse Subs. 
 
Winn Dixie’s new renovation will be complete soon.  $4 million dollar renovation. 
 

C.) Civic Center & Bayfront – Margaret distributed and went over her monthly and YTD 
financial reports (attached).   She pointed out that revenue increases – as people are 

38



 

 

 

P
ag

e2
 

beginning to spend more.  There is a trend in choosing the Civic Center over the 
Bayfront facility because the public is willing to and perhaps have the money to spend 
now. Termites have been discovered on the stage but the termite bond does cover the 
damage. 
 

 

D.) Booth Property Update – Richard Johnson reported that the city attorney has said that 
the city can legally swap property with a private citizen.  He proposes that we do a 
memo of understanding (rough draft) proposing that Booth pay all associated costs with 
the swap.  This should go to a work session.  
 

 
E.) Jubilee Courtyard – Beth Moore, a member of the Daphne Women’s Study Club, is 

proposing that a sign be placed at the Jubilee Courtyard stating it is for public use.  She 
feels this would increase the usage of the pretty area.   This is located between Will 
Hughes and the Cigar/Wine shop.  It was suggested and asked that she get with the 
Beautification Committee regarding a design and Richard Johnson said he felt like the 
City could pay for the sign with funds from the sign budget.  Should costs around $40. 
Ms. Moore agreed to move forward with this request. 

 
 

Mayor Yelding said he would ask that the following items be placed on future work 

session: 

 

April  Building Codes 

  Booth Property 

May  Retail Strategies 

  
 

 

39



CITY OF DAPHNE CHAIRMAN - Councilman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING Councilwoman Cathy Barnette, District 2 

Time: 5:00 PM on March 19, 2012  Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall Council Chambers 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  
  The March meeting of the Public Works Committee was called to order at 5:05 PM   

 

Present: Mayor Bailey Yelding, Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, Councilwoman Cathy 

Barnette, Councilman John Lake, Richard D. Johnson-Director Public Works, Sandra 

Cushway-PW Administrative Assistant, Tim Lawley-HMR, Davis – Volkert, Ashley 

Campbell-Daphne Environmental/Erosion, Tonya Halterman-Daphne Citizen, Terry 

Halterman-Daphne Resident 

 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Work Request Report – February reports reviewed.   

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Report – February & YTD reports reviewed.   Richard 

pointed out that there was a large non-routine expense and explained that the work would be 

warrantied.  We will be getting a refund from the manufacturer for $17,110. 

C. Public Participation – Terry Halterman would like to bring the committee’s attention to the 

Lake Forest Stables.  They have spent many hours cleaning up the grounds and have found 

several areas of erosion and washouts.  Richard commented that they would like to be able to 

pasture the horses in the easement.  Public Works would clean up the easement, and then the 

stables would maintain them.  Currently the easement is only being used by 4-wheelers as a 

cut through. He would like to see this fenced off.  Richard is requesting approval from the 

Committee and POA to clean up and Hydra Mow the easement.  Need to get Ashley on board.  

Councilwoman Barnette made a motion to authorize utility easement maintenance upon 

upon approval from the POA and Riviera.  Motion seconded by Councilman Lake.  All 

in Favor.   

D. Correspondence – DEES Recycling Article in Press-Register 

E. Correspondence – SEEDS letter of Appreciation 

 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes – February 20, 2012.  Councilwoman Barnette made a motion to accept the 

minutes; motion seconded by Councilman Lake. 

B. Mosquito Reports – None Submitted  

C. Street Sweeper Reports – February reports reviewed.  Councilman Lake asked why Park 

City was not swept during the month of February.  Richard has reviewed this with the Street 

Supervisor and will follow-up. 
 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Pesticide Discharge Management Plan (PDMP): ADEM Pesticide General Permit Application.  

The process involves getting a permit from ADEM.  We now have to justify any pesticide 

sprayed along with the volume being sprayed.  Standing water needs to be removed or treated.  

Will need to use more targeted treatment.  A citizen’s complaint does not automatically 

constitute justification.  Planning to submit application by the end of the month.  

Councilwoman Barnette made a motion to move forward to receive Mayor’s signature.  

Motion seconded by Councilman Lake.  All in favor.  Ashley commented that education 

outreach is a large part of the plan.  Richard stated that spraying has typically been done after 

4:00 PM by employee volunteers supplemented by targeted spraying done during the day by a 

single employee.  Our mosquito spraying is funded by the county. 

 
V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

A. US Highway 98 – West Service Road Extension (Councilman Lake’s request).  Councilman 40



Lake stated that if the service road was complete to Van Buren, it would improve traffic flow 

and increased safety during heavy traffic periods.  Councilwoman Barnette commented that it 

was a great idea, just not a priority at this time.  Richard stated that HSIP money can on be 

used for safety related projects.  Randy Davis said that he would contact them for more 

information.  Councilwoman Barnette made a motion to authorize the Public Works 

Director to move forward with Volkert.  Motion seconded by Councilman Lake.  All in 

Favor. 
 

VI. SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

A. Monthly Equipment Use Report – February 105 tons recycled, up 5% from last year.  

Councilwoman Barnette would like to tour the Tarpon Paper Recycling Facility.  Richard to 

arrange tour.  Councilman Lake commented that the price of Aluminum has decreased. 

B. Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Last Quarter Tonnage Comparison).   

 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – February 13, 2012. Minutes reviewed. 

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – March 2, 2012.  Minutes reviewed 

B. Update – Finishing up landscaping projects at KFC triangle.  Preparing the Patriots Point 

Memorial. Prepping wall and installing flag poles.  A brief ceremony will be held in May.   

 

IX. ENVIRONMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes from February 27, 2012 Meeting – Next Meeting March 26, 2012 at 4:00 PM 

B. Weeks Bay Project – For Motion and Action.  Councilwoman Barnette made a motion to 

approve the letter of endorsement.  Motion seconded by Councilman Lake.  All in Favor. 

C. Councilwoman Barnette asked if the EAC need to go through the PW Committee or can they 

take items directly to the council/work sessions.  She added that sometimes there isn’t 

sufficient time to wait for an issue to go before the PW Committee.  Councilman Lake stated 

that he liked the idea of doing a poll. 

 

X. ENGINEER REPORT 

A. HMR Update – Nothing to report. 

 

XI. FUTURE BUSINESS 

D. Next Meeting – April 16, 2012 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT   

The meeting adjourned at 5:43 PM.  

41



District 1 
Dorothy Morrison, 
Chair 
 
District 2 
Carolyn Coleman 
Marilyn O’Connor- 
Moore, Secretary 
Bea Wilson 
 
District 3 
 
District 4 
Selena Vaughn 
 
District 5 
David Dueitt 
Patty Kearney 
 
District 6 
Elaine Maxime 
 
District 7 

Rebecca Trosclair 
 
City Liaisons 
Margorie Bellue 
Richard Johnson 
Dwayne Coley 
David McKelroy 
Denise Penry 
Pat Albert 

 

April 6, 2012 Meeting Minutes 
 
 

 

In attendance:  

Dwayne Coley, Denise Penry, Rebecca Trosclair, Selena Vaughn 

 

Though there was not a quorum, we had a guest and therefore proceeded with a 

brief meeting. 

 
 

Guest: Beth Moore with Daphne Study Club 

 

The Daphne Study Club was instrumental in retaining the Jubilee Courtyard as a 

public park and they would like the City post a sign making it clear that it is open 

to the public. They would like to see their organization logo on this sign as they 

were instrumental in keeping that park alive. This will be brought to the DBC 

members at the May meeting for discussion. 

 

Public Works Report: 

 

Denise requested a discussion and vote at the May meeting about what color to 

paint the welcome to Daphne signs. She also presented a request from Tomasina 

Werner who has spoken also to the Mayor about erecting Purple Martin houses 

around some of our parks at the expense of the City. This too should be dis-

cussed at the May meeting. 

 

Dwayne has working on the military flag project and reports the poles and 

plaques are up. Concrete will poured Monday and he is continuing to research the 

gas flame logistics. Dr. Booth is unable to attend That Thursday so the event is 

being moved to Friday, May 25 at 10:30. The event could last 30, 45 minutes. 

Dwayne also reports the stones on the KFC hill are being removed. 

 

Committee Reports: 

 

It is time again for the Beautification Award and this quarter will be Dictrict 1 &2 

combined. Rebecca asked that the TimberCreek signs be picked up. 

 

 

Meeting adjourned. 

 
 

 
 

 

42



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

43



44



45



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                

DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
APRIL 23, 2012 

5:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLLCALL 

Mary Beth Mantiply called the meeting to order at 5:40 p.m. 

 

Members Present: Mary Beth Mantiply; Ken Balme; Doug Bailey; Ronald Nero; Dayna 

Oldham. 

  

ABSENT:  Casey Zito. 

 

Also present: Cathy Barnette, Council Liaison Rebecca Hayes, recording secretary; 

Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee. 

 

 

2.   APPROVE MINUTES / FEBRUARY 27. 2012 

 

MOTION BY Doug Bailey to approve the February 27, 2011 minutes.  Seconded by 

Ronald Nero. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR                     NONE APPROVED                     MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

3.    OLD BUSINESS: 

       a.)  Plaque Update 

 Doug reported that he received three (3) estimates.  One (1) quote from Florida and two 

(2) out of Mobile.  One was from M&A which had a good price of $300-$350. The price 

may vary due to what they want.  Dorothy said that she has changed her opinion of M&A 

after doing business with them.  One thing the plaque came from Michigan, and not local, 

and the other was the plaque was not as she ordered it, and it was a month late.  The 

company would not change it out or reduce the price for their mistake.  Doug said that he 

would continue to look for a company and get back with the members. 

 

       c.)   Mini-Grant Update 

Ken said that he has not gone any further than discussed at the last meeting with the grant 

application for the Megasons.   He said that De Cuba was interested in a grant to spruce up 

their business.   

 

Ken will revise the application and make it general in nature, and have it at the next 

meeting for approval. 

 

Cathy suggested sending the businesses a letter informing them of parking, events in Olde 

Towne and the grants.  She will work on a draft letter and keep the members informed. 

 

 

 

 

46



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                

DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                     

APRIL 23, 2012 

5:30 P.M. 

 

2 

 
     d.)  Website Update 

Ken said that Fairhope and the Chamber have new websites, and he did not want to encroach on 

their territory.  He handed out a draft of what the Authority’s website could contain: 

1.)  Merchant FB-type Group 

a.)  Dialog among all, free-for-all discussion 

b.)  Restart discussion re-master plan 

c.)  Member List 

 

2.) Retail Market Place 

a.)  Advertise merchandise or services 

b.) Sell directly items shown – eCommerce 

c.) Will need “rules” 

 

3.)  Blog 

a.)  FB - I grew up in Daphne 

b.)  FB - Daphne Museum 

c.)  FB – Others 

d.) Point of view – DRA Merchants 

e.) Engage citizens 

 

4.)  Special Events 

a.)  Events by Olde Towne Merchants 

 

5.)   Very Special Events 

a.)  Jubilee Festival 

b.)  May Day Park 

c.)  Bay Front 

d.) Civic Center 

e.)  Other events held in Olde Towne 

 

Ken will contact JMF Solutions with this information for the website. 

 

d.)  Olde Towne Daphne Map 

Cathy said that Karen Nady has completed the map, and it should be ready by the end of May.  

Dorothy asked if it could be out by May 28
th
.  Cathy said she will check it out.  Cathy said the 

printer would create a logo for the Authority.  The Authority liked the items on the city flag.  Cathy 

will take that to the printer to create something using the items on the flag. 

 

4.   NEW BUSINESS: 

      a.)  Pictures of store fronts on Main Street 

Ken passed around a photo album with some of the store fronts, but he has not done them all.  He 

will be working on getting the rest of them done. 

 

5.    TREASURERS REPORT: 

The balance in the reserve fund as of January is $74,341.70 
 
 
 

   

47



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                

DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                     

APRIL 23, 2012 

5:30 P.M. 

 

3 

Downtown Redevelopment Board   

Updated on 3/26/2012   

    

Collection Month Due to D.R.B. by 
Month 

YTD Total 
Reserve 

October-09 $1,970.28   $1,970.28  

November-09 $1,688.17   $3,658.45  

December-09 $1,578.57   $5,237.02  

January-10 $2,144.19   $7,381.21  

February-10 $2,349.92   $9,731.13  

March-10 $2,638.58   $12,369.71  

April-10 $2,076.55   $14,446.26  

May-10 $3,341.05   $17,787.31  

June-10 $3,991.14   $21,778.45  

July-10 $4,595.32   $26,373.77  

August-10 $3,166.18   $29,539.95  

September-10 $2,633.14   $32,173.09  

October-10 $2,800.07   $34,973.16  

November-10 $2,416.49   $37,389.65  

December-10 $2,360.53   $39,750.18  

January-11 $2,450.31   $42,200.49  

February-11 $2,152.63   $44,353.12  

March-11 $2,424.39   $46,777.51  

April-11 $2,894.02   $49,671.53  

May-11 $3,371.12   $53,042.65  

June-11 $3,377.24   $56,419.89  

July-11 $3,831.59   $60,251.48  

August-11 $2,641.02   $62,892.50  

September-11 $2,260.84   $65,153.34  

October-11 $2,600.13   $67,753.47  

November-11 $2,378.40   $70,131.87  

December-11 $2,113.96   $72,245.83  

January-12 $2,095.87   $74,341.70  

February-12    

March-12    

April-12    

May-12    

June-12    

July-12    

August-12    

September-12    

    

 $74,341.70  √  

    

FY 2009 $32,173.09    

FY 2010 $32,980.25    

FY 2012 $9,188.36    

 $74,341.70  √  

.   

48



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                

DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                     

APRIL 23, 2012 

5:30 P.M. 

 

4 

Casey has not finalized the bank account as yet.  The members agreed that they wanted to 

use a Daphne Bank.  Doug will check with a local bank to see what is needed to set up an 

account, and get with Casey about opening one. 

 

 6.   REPORT ON BEAUTIFICATION PROJECTS / DOROTHY MORRISION 

Dorothy reported that the Beautification Committee is planning on putting plants in the 

middle Lane of Daphne Avenue down to Hwy 98.  

 

She also reported that the dedication for Patriots Point, at Civic Center where the rose 

garden used to be, where the flags of the different branches of the Armed Services will fly 

along with the American flag will be Friday, May 25, 2012 at 10:30 a.m. 

 

Cathy reported that Jane is working on a simple May Day Program at May Day Park.  She 

will build it up more with each year. 

 

7.  NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting will be May 28, 2012 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Since May 28
th

 is a holiday, and the members agreed to meet Wednesday, May 30
th

 at 5:30 

p.m. in the Executive Conference room. 

 

 

8.  ADJOURN 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Downtown Redevelopment Authority       

 

 

 

 

 

                                         

49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



MINUTES - 1 

 

APPROVED MINUTES 

Utilities Board Meeting 

         City of Daphne Council Chambers  April 4 (March), 2012  5:00 p.m. 
 

I. Call to Order 
The regular March 2012, Board meeting for the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne was held on April 4, 2012 and called to 
order by Chairman Robert Segalla, at 5:00 p.m. 
 

II. Roll Call 
   Members Present: Robert Segalla, Chairman 

 Fenton E. Jenkins, Vice Chairman  
 Ron Scott, Secretary/Treasurer  
 Bailey Yelding, Mayor 
  Lon Johnston 
Others Absent:  
   

      Others Present: Jerry Speegle – Board Attorney  
 Rob McElroy – General Manager 
 Danny Lyndall – Operations Manager 
 Teresa Logiotatos – Finance Manager  
 Deloris Brown – Human Resources Manager 
 Drew Klumpp – Administrative Services Manager 
  Lori May-Wilson – Executive Assistant 
 Melinda Immel – Volkert & Associates 
 Doug Bailey - HMR 
 Ray Moore - HMR 
 
 Others Absent:   
 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 
The Chairman led the Board and meeting attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
IV. Approval of Minutes        

A. Utilities Board Minutes from February 29, 2012: 

The Chairman inquired if there were any corrections noted for the submitted Minutes from the February 29, 2012, Utilities 
Board meeting. No corrections were made. 
   

MOTION BY Mayor Bailey Yelding to approve the Minutes for February 29, 2012; Seconded by Fenton 
Jenkins. 
AYE: JENKINS, SCOTT, SEGALLA, YELDING                ABSENT: ABSTAIN: JOHNSTON,   
MOTION CARRIED 

  
 
 

V. Old Business 
A. Items in Abeyance 

1.  Gas Franchise Agreement – No updated information was reported. 

2.  Spanish Fort Sewer Franchise issues – No updated information was reported. 
81



MINUTES - 2 

 
Mr. McElroy stated that since there has been no movement on these items that they would be removed until new 
information could be reported. 

 
3.  Discussion of Utilities’ Board meeting schedule – Mr. McElroy stated that the Daphne Utilities’ staff was fine 
with  

whatever the Board decides.  Vice-Chairman Jenkins opened up the discussion.  After the Board’s input and discussion, 
it was decided to keep the Board meetings to remain on the monthly basis. 
 
Chairman Segalla called for a Motion to change the meeting schedule from a monthly to a bi-monthly. 
 

MOTION BY Ron Scott to change the Utility Board meetings from being held monthly to every 
other month; Seconded by Fenton Jenkins.  By a show of hands,  

AYE: JENKINS        NAY: JOHNSTON, SCOTT, SEGALLA, YELDING          ABSENT:    ABSTAIN:          

MOTION FAILED 

 
Lon Johnston also commented that the public is entitled to a reasonable opportunity to attend the Utility Board meetings 
and voice their opinions.   

 

VI. New Business 
A. Recommendation of Award for the Floor Coating System for the Biosolids Facility Building 
Mr. McElroy acknowledged the contract up for award and gave the floor to Melinda Immel of Volkert & Associates Inc. to 
explain the bid process and recommendation for this project to the Board.   
 

MOTION BY Ron Scott to accept the recommendation and award the bid for the Flooring Coating  
System for the Biosolids Facility Building to Melvin Pierce Painting in the amount of $67,850.00;  
Seconded by Lon Johnston. 
AYE: JENKINS, JOHNSTON, SCOTT, SEGALLA,YELDING           ABSENT:   ABSTAIN:        

         MOTION CARRIED 

 
VII. BOARD ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

 Mr. Speegle had nothing further to add to his report. 
 

VIII. FINANCIAL REPORT 
 Teresa Logiotatos highlighted the financials for the Board.  She pointed out the charts for the gas revenue, in particular, and 

noted that it has significantly dropped this year compared to the budget due to an unseasonably warm winter.  She 
commented that the audit was still be prepared for presentation to the Board.  Also, she notified the Board that insurance 
quotes are coming in and being reviewed, as well as informing the Board that a new billing system is being explored.  Ron 
Scott asked if there was a reporting of the access securities of accounting audits.  A discussion developed the financial 
impact of future catastrophic event based on the situation that previously happened at the Water Reclamation Facility.  A 
request for an upcoming mid-year budget financial work session was discussed. 

 

IX. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
A. GM Report 
Rob McElroy gave praise to Volkert & Associates for all their work they do for the Utilities and the Mobile Area Council of 
Engineers Project of the Year Award for the Water Reclamation Facility as well as Jim Caudle and his staff. 
 
Drew Klumpp briefly updated the Board on the Lend-A-Hand program and recognized Daphne Utilities’ vendor Kingdom 
Creations for her $500 donation to the program. 

 

 
Deloris Brown informed the Board that Daphne Utilities is participating in the E-Verify program.  
 
Danny Lyndall introduced new natural gas employee Doug Brooks as well as informed the Board of another new employee 
Maurice Rasheed who will be working in the Warehouse with Earl Bolden.  He advised the Board that the catastrophic 
event that took place at the Water Reclamation Facility has been completely corrected and thanked Jim Caudle, Art 
Anderson, Larry Jackson, Woodrow Maye and the employees involved in helping to rectify this situation without receiving a 82



MINUTES - 3 

single violation.  Ron Scott gave thanks to the Utilities for supporting the Well Road project.  Mayor Yelding also gave thanks 
to the Utilities for the continual community events support.  Fenton Jenkins asked about the warranty on the “microwave” 
at the Water Reclamation Facility.  Melinda Immel responded to his questions.   

 
Melinda Immel of Volkert & Associates had nothing further to add to her report.  
 
Doug Bailey of HMR updated the Board that the punch-list items for the Well Road project are being addressed.      

   

X. BOARD ACTION – Resolution 2012-2  - A Resolution of the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne for 
authorization of the Utilities Board Chairman to Approve Pricing of the Refinancing of the 2003 Bond 

Issue.  A representative from Gardnyr, Michael Capital, Inc., David Langham, gave a presentation to the Board for the 
Resolution that was being proposed.  After an explanation, he clarified that this resolution proposes is authorization by the 
Chairman to sign the bond purchase agreement when the bond are priced, which will be the following Tuesday.  Mr. Scott 
added that this is a tenure bond.   

 

MOTION BY Lon Johnston to approve Resolution 2012-2 A Resolution of the Utilities Board of the  

City of Daphne for authorization of the Utilities Board Chairman to Approve Pricing of the Refinancing of  

the 2003 Bond Issue; Seconded by Mayor Bailey Yelding. 
AYE: JENKINS, JOHNSTON, SCOTT, SEGALLA, YELDING           ABSENT:   ABSTAIN:        

         MOTION CARRIED 

 

 
XI. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  – Larry Jackson thanked the Board for the support of the new Central Services Facilities.  

 

XII. BOARD COMMENTS – None. 

  

XIII. ADJOURNMENT – 

 

MOTION BY Mayor Bailey Yelding to adjourn the meeting; Seconded by Fenton Jenkins. 
AYE: JENKINS, SEGALLA,YELDING           ABSENT: JOHNSTON, SCOTT               ABSTAIN:                 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
The meeting adjourned at 5:57 pm.  

83



MINUTES - 1 

 

APPROVED MINUTES 

Utilities Board Special Meeting 

         Daphne Utilities Main Office  April 24, 2012  3:00 p.m. 
 

I. Call to Order 
The Special meeting for the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne was held on April 24, 2012 and called to order by Chairman 
Robert Segalla, at 3:00 p.m. 
 

II. Roll Call 
   Members Present: Robert Segalla, Chairman 

 Fenton E. Jenkins, Vice Chairman  
 Ron Scott, Secretary/Treasurer  
 Bailey Yelding, Mayor 
  Lon Johnston 
Others Absent:  
   

      Others Present: Teresa Logiotatos – Finance Manager  
 Lori May-Wilson – Executive Assistant 
  
 Others Absent:   
 

 
III. New Business 

A. Approval of Resolution 2012-05 – Resolution to Approve the 2012 Bond Issue 
Mrs. Logiotatos explained to the Board that the approval of this Resolution to refund and refinance the 2003 Bonds 
resulted in a total savings of $734,000 with a variable interest rate, an average rate of 2.07% for a 10 year period. 
 

MOTION BY Ron Scott to accept approve Resolution 2012-05 – Approval of the 2012 Bond Issue;  
Seconded by Lon Johnston. 
AYE: JENKINS, JOHNSTON, SCOTT, SEGALLA,YELDING           ABSENT:   ABSTAIN:        

         MOTION CARRIED 

 

IV. BOARD COMMENTS – No additional Board comments were made. 

  

V. ADJOURNMENT – 

 

MOTION BY Ron Scott to adjourn the meeting; Seconded by Lon Johnston. 
AYE: JENKINS, JOHNSTON, SCOTT, SEGALLA,YELDING           ABSENT:              ABSTAIN:                 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
The meeting adjourned at 3:03  pm.  

84



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 

85



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 

86



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 

87



RESOLUTION 2012-34 
 

  2012-H-MAIN STREET RESURFACING: MCADAMS AVENUE TO BAYFRONT 
  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is required under section 39-1-1(E) of the Code of Alabama to 
secure competitive bids for public works contracts in excess of $ 50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne acknowledges that MAIN STREET: MCADAMS AVENUE TO 

BAYFRONT will exceed $50,000; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the MAIN STREET: 
MCADAMS AVENUE TO BAYFRONT and has determined that the bid as presented is 
reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends the bid for MAIN STREET: MCADAMS AVENUE TO 
BAYFRONT be awarded to Hosea O. Weaver & Sons, Inc.. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid from                   
Hosea O. Weaver & Sons, Inc. in the amount of $815,642.10 as specified in BID 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2012-H-MAIN STREET: MCADAMS AVENUE TO BAYFRONT. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this _         day of _                     , 2012. 
 

________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette,  
Council President 

                                                                        
     

                                                                                                                                                                                              
                                                                       ____________________________ 
                                                                      Bailey Yelding, Jr.,  

 Mayor 
                                                                            
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, 
City Clerk, MMC 

88



RESOLUTION 2012-35 
  2012-I-WELL ROAD EXTENSION TO HIGHWAY 13 

  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is required under section 39-1-1(E) of the Code of Alabama to 
secure competitive bids for public works contracts in excess of $ 50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne acknowledges that WELL ROAD EXTENSION TO HIGHWAY 13 will 

exceed $50,000; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the WELL ROAD EXTENSION 
TO HIGHWAY 13 and has determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends the bid for WELL ROAD EXTENSION TO HIGHWAY 13 be 
awarded to Asphalt Services, Inc.. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid from                   
Asphalt Services, Inc. in the amount of $207,028.50 as specified in BID SPECIFICATION 
NO. 2012-I-WELL ROAD EXTENSION TO HIGHWAY 13. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this _         day of _                      , 2012. 
 

________________________________ 
                                                                       Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                                                                        
     

                                                                                                                                                                                              
                                                                      _________________________________ 
                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
                                                                            
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

89



 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

RESOLUTION NO.  2012-36 

 
A RESOLUTION SCHEDULING A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE 

ADOPTION OF CERTAIN TECHNICAL CODES BY REFERENCE 

 

 

            WHEREAS, the city of  Daphne shall heretofore by Ordinance adopt the 2012 Edition of 

the International Building Code, 2012 Edition of the International Residential Mechanical code, 

2012 Edition of the International Plumbing Code,  International Energy Efficiency Code 2012 

and the 2011 Edition of the National Electrical Code: and the City of Daphne supplemental code 

to the 2012 International Residential Code. 

 

 WHEREAS, the International Code Council Incorporated has published the 2012 

Edition of the International Building Code, 2006 Edition of the Residential Code, 2012 Edition 

of the International Fuel Gas Code, 2012 Edition of the International Mechanical Code, and the 

2012 Edition of the International Plumbing Code, 2012 International Energy Efficiency 

Code,  and the National Fire Prevention Association has published the 2011 Edition of the 

National Electric Code; and the City of Daphne has published the City of Daphne Supplemental 

Code to the 2012 International Residential Code.  

 

             WHEREAS, Section 11-45-8 of the Code of Alabama 1975 provides for the adoption of 

codes in book form upon compliance with the requirements of such Section; and 

 

 

              NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. That a second public hearing shall be held on June 4, 2012, concerning the adoption of 

an Ordinance for the 2012 edition of the International Building Code, 2012 Edition of the 

International Residential Code, 2012 Edition of the International Fuel Gas Code, 2012 

Edition of the International Mechanical Code, International Energy Efficiency Code 

2012, 2011 Edition of the National Electric Code, City of Daphne Supplemental Code to 

the 2012 International Residential Code and all amendments thereof. 

 

2. Said Ordinance shall provide for the amendment, deletion, and changes   

To the International Residential Code, Edition 2012, as follows: 

 

a.   The following section of the International Residential Code, edition      

      2012 is hereby revised in its entirety to read as follows: 

 

R. 106.1          Submitted documents. Construction documents, special inspection and structural 

observation programs and other data shall be submitted in two sets with each 

application for a permit the construction documents shall be prepared by a 

registered design professional for all new residential homes and additions over  

90



RESOLUTION 2012-36                                    IBC CODE                                        PAGE    2 

 

 

 750 sq ft. Where special conditions exist, the building official is authorized to 

require additional construction documents to be prepared by a registered design 

professional. 

 

                        EXCEPTION:  The building official is authorized to waive the submission of 

construction documents and other data not required to be prepared by a registered 

design professional if it is found that the nature of the work applied for is such 

that reviewing of construction documents is not necessary to obtain compliance 

with this code. 

 

3. That this resolution be published once a week for two consecutive weeks  

Prior to said hearing. 

 

4. That three copies of said Codes shall be filed for not less than fifteen (15) days prior to 

the holding of public hearing for use and examination by the public in the Office of the 

City Clerk. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this           day of               , 2012. 

 

 

                                                                                    ______________________________ 

                                                                                    CATHY S. BARNETTE, 

                                                                                    COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

                                                                                     
 

 

                                                                                    ______________________________ 

                                                                                    BAILEY YELDING, JR., 

                                                                                    MAYOR 

                                                                                     
 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________ 

DAVID L. COHEN 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

             

 

 

91



CITY OF DAPHNE 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-37 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING THE SCHEDULING OF A PUBLIC HEARING 

TO CONSIDER THE ADOPTION OF THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE 

AS AMENDED BY REFERENCE 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, the International Code Council, Incorporated, has published the 

2012 Edition of the International Fire Code; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Section 11-45-8(c) of the Code of Alabama 1975, provides for the 

adoption of codes in book form upon compliance with the requirements of said Section; 

and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Daphne, Alabama, finds it to be in 

the interests of the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Daphne, Alabama, to 

adopt the 2012 Edition of the International Fire Code, as amended; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne shall heretofore by Ordinance adopt the 2012 

Edition of the International Fire Code, as amended; and 

   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I: PUBLIC HEARING 

 

That a second public hearing shall be held on June 4, 2012 concerning the 

adoption of an ordinance for the 2012 Edition of the International Fire Code and all 

amendments thereto. 

 

SECTION II: ENTIRE CODE, AS AMENDED, TO BE ADOPTED WITH SPECIFIC 

REVISIONS 

 

Said Ordinance shall provide for the amendments, deletions, and changes to the 

2012 Edition of the International Fire Code, as amended. 

 

Pursuant to applicable law, the City of Daphne is permitted to repeal certain 

provisions of the 2012 Edition of the International Fire Code, as amended, and provide 

separate authority. Predicated on said authority, the following sections of the 2012 

Edition of the International Fire Code, as amended, be and are hereby revised in their  

entirety to read as follows: 

 
 

 

92



RESOLUTION 2012-37      2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE              PAGE   2 

 

A.  

Section 101.1 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 101.1 shall be added to read as follows: 

 

101.1 Title.    These regulations shall be known as the Fire Code of Daphne, hereinafter  

           referred to as “this code.” 

 

B. 

Section 103.1 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 103.1 shall be added to read as follows: 

 

103.1 General.   Bureau of Fire Prevention.  There is hereby established a     

           department to be called the Bureau of Fire Prevention and the person in    

           charge shall be known in this Code as the Fire Code Official, who shall be   

           the Fire Marshal of the City of Daphne. The function of the department  

           shall be the implementation, administration and enforcement of the   

           provisions of this code and amendments. 

 

C. 

Section 103.2 Appointment. Of the International Fire Code shall be removed in its 

entirety. 

 

D. 

Section 105.6.30 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 105.6.30 shall be added to read as follows. 

Open Burning 

No person shall kindle or maintain any bonfire or rubbish fire or authorize 

any such fire to be kindled or maintained without a permit or other proper 

authorization. 

 No waste materials, rubbish, trees, bushes or brush cleared for 

construction or demolition of buildings or structures shall be disposed of 

by burning on the premises or in the immediate vicinity by the owner, the 

contractor, or any other person, unless a permit or other proper 

authorization has been obtained to burn said waste materials in an 

approved waste burner/incinerator.       

 

The permit for each approved waste burner/incinerator shall be      

$75.00  

 

E. 

Section 105.7.1 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 105.7.1 shall be added to read as follows: 

 

 

 

93



RESOLUTION 2012-37      2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE              PAGE   3 
 

Fixed Fire Extinguishing Systems Installation 

 

No person shall engage in the business of installing fixed fire 

extinguishing systems without obtaining a permit from the Bureau of Fire 

Prevention. 

 

No person shall install a fixed fire extinguishing system without obtaining 

a current City of Daphne business license. 

 

No person shall be issued a permit to install fixed fire extinguishing 

equipment who does not possess a manufacturers certification for 

installation and servicing for the type system being installed and have a 

Certificate of Insurance, General Liability for $ 1,000,000 with the City of 

Daphne, Bureau of Fire Prevention, P.O. Box 400, Daphne AL. 36526 

listed as a Certificate Holder. 

 

Any modifications made to a fixed system including adding additional 

flow points will require an installation permit. 

   

  A complete plan/drawing of the system and the devices that are being  

protected shall be submitted before a permit is issued and a copy shall be 

placed in the control box.   

 

   

The technician who actually performs the installation of the fixed fire 

extinguishing systems shall legibly sign and date the service tag verifying 

that all work was done in compliance with current NFPA standards. 

  

 The Fire Code Official shall require certain operational tests upon final 

inspection. 

 

The permit fee for each fire extinguisher system installation shall be  

$75.00 

 

Section 105.7.1.1 

 

Servicing Fixed Fire Extinguishing Systems 

 

No person shall engage in the business of servicing or inspecting fixed fire 

extinguishing systems without obtaining a permit from the Bureau of Fire 

Prevention. The permit is good only for that calendar year of which it is 

issued. 

 

No person shall service or inspect a fixed fire extinguishing system 

without obtaining a current City of Daphne business license. 

94



RESOLUTION 2012-37      2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE              PAGE   4 

 

No person shall be issued a permit to service or inspect fixed fire 

extinguishing equipment who does not possess a manufacturers 

certification for installation and servicing for the type system being 

installed and have a Certificate of Insurance, General Liability for $ 

1,000,000 with the City of Daphne, Bureau of Fire Prevention, P.O. Box 

400, Daphne AL. 36526 listed as a Certificate Holder. 

   

Any modifications made to a fixed system including adding additional 

flow points will require an installation permit. 

   

  A complete plan/drawing of the system and the devices that are being  

protected shall be submitted before a permit is issued and a copy shall be 

placed in the control box.   

 

The technician who actually performs the work of servicing or inspecting 

the fixed fire extinguishing systems shall legibly sign and date the service 

tag verifying that all work was done in compliance with current NFPA 

standards. 

 

A permit is not required for follow up inspection or service, if a permit 

was received for that system in the same year.  However a report shall be 

furnished to the Bureau of Fire Prevention upon completion of work being 

done. 

The permit fee for servicing a fixed fire extinguisher system shall be 

$75.00 

 

F. 

Section 105.7.6 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 105.7.6 shall read as follows: 

 

Section 105.7.6 

Fire Alarm System Installation 

 

No person shall install a fire alarm system without having the plans 

reviewed by the Fire Code Official before commencing any part of the 

work. No person shall commence working on a fire alarm system without 

first obtaining a permit from the Bureau of Fire Prevention. 

 

There is excepted from the requirements of this Section 105.7.4.1 

installations in any building with single station detectors only. 

 

Installer must possess a State Fire Alarm Permit issued by the State Fire 

Marshals office. 

 

 

95



RESOLUTION 2012-37      2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE              PAGE   5    
 

 

Any person or entity who designs fire alarm systems must possess a State 

Fire Alarm Permit issued by the State Fire Marshals office. 

    

   Licensed electricians may pull wire, mount ancillary equipment, and 

connect the main power to the control panel after a permit has been issued; 

but no one other than a qualified fire alarm installer shall be allowed to 

make any other connections inside the control panel. 

    

   A certified fire sprinkler installer may install devices integral to the 

operation of the fire sprinkler system, but shall not make and connections 

to the fire alarm system. 

    

   Upon final inspection, the NFPA Fire Alarm System Record of 

Completion form must be properly filled out and submitted to the Fire 

Code Official and a fire alarm system test must be performed in the 

presence of the Fire Code Official. 

 

   All fire alarm circuit disconnecting means shall have a red marking and 

shall be identified as “Fire Alarm”. 

  

Fire Alarm Control Units (FACU) will be located at the entrance of the 

building or provide an annunciator panel at the entrance and also indicate 

the location of the main panel. 

    

   The permit fee for installing a fire alarm system shall be $75.00 

 

Section 105.7.6.1 

Servicing Fire Alarm Systems 

      

No person shall engage in the business of servicing fire alarm systems 

without obtaining a permit from the Fire Code Official. The permit is good 

only for that calendar year of which it is issued. There is excepted from 

the requirements of Section 105.7.4 installations of the following types: 

 

(1) One and two family dwellings 

(2) Any buildings with single station detectors only. 

(3) Owners of buildings may maintain their own systems as long as 

their maintenance person is certified by the manufacturer of the 

installed equipment or has National Institute for Certification in 

Engineering Technologies (NICET) level II in fire alarms. 

 

   No person shall be issued a permit to modify, repair, test or service fire 

alarm systems who does not possess a State of Alabama Fire Alarm Permit 

issued by the State Fire Marshals office. 

96



RESOLUTION 2012-37      2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE              PAGE   6          
     

 

A service tag or sticker shall be required to be installed by the permitted 

alarm servicing individual or company at the control panel of each fire 

alarm system, stating the company’s name, address, phone number, name 

of the technician performing the service, date and the type of service 

performed.  

 

The permit fee to service a fire alarm system shall be $75.00 

 

G. 

Section 105.7.7 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 105.7.7 shall be added to read as follows: 

 

Fire Pumps Installation 

 

Any person who installs fire pumps must be licensed by the Alabama State 

Fire Marshal’s Office and approved by the Fire Code Official. 

 

No person shall install a fire pump without first obtaining a permit from 

the Bureau of Fire Prevention. 

 

  Installer must possess a current City of Daphne business license and have 

a Certificate of Insurance, General Liability for $1,000,000 with the City 

of Daphne, Bureau of Fire Prevention, P.O. Box 400, Daphne AL. 36526 

listed as a Certificate Holder. 

 

   Installer must have fire pump plans reviewed by the Fire Code Official 

before commencing installation. 

 

All testing of the fire pump shall comply with NFPA 25. The Fire Code 

Official may require certain operational test upon final inspection. 

 

The permit fee to install a fire pump shall be $75.00 

 

 

Section 105.7.7.1 shall be added to read as follows: 

    

  Servicing Fire Pumps 

 

Any person who services, test or inspects fire pumps must be licensed by 

the Alabama State Fire Marshal’s Office and approved by the Fire Code 

Official. 

 

No person shall service, test or inspect a fire pump without first obtaining 

a permit from the Bureau of Fire Prevention. 

97



RESOLUTION 2012-37      2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE              PAGE   7    
 

 

 The Person/Business who obtains the permit must possess a current City 

of Daphne business license and have a Certificate of Insurance, General 

Liability for $1,000,000 with the City of Daphne, Bureau of Fire 

Prevention, P.O. Box 400, Daphne AL. 36526 listed as a Certificate 

Holder 

 

  The permit fee to service, test or inspect a fire pump shall be $75.00 

 

H. 

Section 105.7.17 shall be added to read as follows:    

   

Portable Fire Extinguisher Service 

No person shall engage in the business of servicing portable fire 

extinguishers without obtaining a permit from the Bureau of Fire 

Prevention. The permit is good only for that calendar year of which it is 

issued. 

 

 No person shall service portable fire extinguishers without obtaining a 

current City of Daphne business license. 

  

No person shall be issued a permit to service a portable fire extinguisher 

that does not posses a manufactures service manual for the type of 

extinguisher being serviced, and have the proper training. They shall have 

a Certificate of Insurance, General Liability for $1,000,000 with the City 

of Daphne, Bureau of Fire Prevention, P.O. Box 400 Daphne, AL 36526 

listed as a Certificate Holder.  

 

The technician who actually performs the work of servicing the portable 

fire extinguishers shall legibly sign and date the service tag verifying that 

all work was done in compliance with current NFPA standards. 

 

  The annual permit fee for portable fire extinguisher service shall be   

$75.00 

I. 

Section 105.7.18 shall be added to read as follows: 

Install Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems 

     

   No person shall install, modify or repair an automatic fire sprinkler system 

without obtaining a permit from the Bureau of Fire Prevention. 

 

  Any person who installs or maintains fire sprinkler systems (hereinafter 

called in Section 402.35 “installer”) must be certified by the Alabama 

State Fire Marshal’s Office, and have a Certificate of Insurance, General 

Liability for $1,000,000 with the City of Daphne, Bureau of Fire  

98



RESOLUTION 2012-37      2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE              PAGE   8 

 

  Prevention, P.O. Box 400, Daphne AL. 36526 listed as a Certificate 

Holder. 

 

   Installer must possess a current City of Daphne business license. 

 

   Installer must have sprinkler plans reviewed by the Fire Code Official 

before commencing installation. 

     

   Upon final inspection, the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 

Contractor's Material and Test Certificate for Aboveground Piping must 

be properly completed and submitted to the Bureau of Fire Prevention. 

 

    The Fire Code Official shall be present during the final inspection of the 

sprinkler system. 

 

  Relocating more than three (3) sprinkler heads in an existing fire sprinkler 

system shall require a permit from the Bureau of Fire Prevention..    

                       The permit fee for each automatic fire sprinkler system installation        

                       shall be $75.00 

 

Section 105.7.18.1 shall be added to read as follows: 

Servicing Fire Sprinkler Systems 

              No person shall service or inspect an automatic fire sprinkler system 

without obtaining a permit from the Bureau of Fire Prevention. 

              

Any person who services or maintains fire sprinkler systems must be 

certified by the Alabama State Fire Marshal’s Office, and have a 

Certificate of Insurance, General Liability for $1,000,000 with the City of 

Daphne, Bureau of Fire Prevention, P.O. Box 400, Daphne AL. 36526 

listed as a Certificate Holder. 

 

              No person shall perform maintenance or testing on fire sprinkler systems  

              unless that person is certified by the Alabama State Fire Marshal’s office  

                   and approved by the Fire Code Official. 

 

   Installer must possess a current City of Daphne business license. 

    

   The permit fee for servicing a fire sprinkler system shall be $75.00 

 

The permit is good only for that calendar year of which it is issued. 

 

J. 

Section 105.7.19 shall be added to read as follows: 

Additional Permits 

Where work for which a permit is required by this code commences prior  

99



RESOLUTION 2012-37      2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE              PAGE   9 
 

to obtaining said permit, the permit fee herein specified shall be doubled. 

 

 It shall be required that a copy of all annual or semi-annual inspection 

reports be submitted to the Bureau of Fire Prevention with any and all 

deficiencies clearly noted. 

 

 All checks and money orders shall be made out to the City of Daphne. 

 

 All certifications whether they are manufacture or NICET must be current 

and not have expired.  

 

                        General requirements for a permit are as followed: 

                        1. Current city of Daphne Business license. 

                        2. Current one million dollar ($1,000,000) general liability insurance     

                            policy with the City  of Daphne listed as a certificate holder, P.O. Box    

                            400 Daphne AL 36526.   

                        3. Approved by the Fire Code Official. 

  4. Current Training certificates. 

  5. Permit fee of $75.00 

K. 

Section 109.4 Violation penalties.  

Persons who shall violate a provision of this code, or shall fail to comply with any 

of the requirements thereof, or who shall erect, install, alter, repair or do work in 

violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the fire code 

official, or of a permit or certificate used under provisions of this code, shall be 

guilty of a violation of the 2012 Edition of the International Fire Code, as 

amended, which is punishable by a fine of not more than Two Hundred ($200) 

dollars. Each day that a violation continues after due notice has been served shall 

be deemed a separate offense. 

  

L. 

Section 307.2.1 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 307.2.1 shall read as follows: 

 

 Authorization. 

 

Open burning shall only be allowed once a calendar month per address/ 

location during the months that outdoor burning is allowed by the State 

Air Quality Agencies. A permit must be obtained before any burning starts 

and all provisions of the burn permit shall be followed. 

M. 

Section 307.4.1 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 307.4.1 shall read as follows: 

 

 

100



RESOLUTION 2012-37      2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE              PAGE   10 
 

Bonfires. 

 

A bonfire shall not be conducted within 50 feet (15 240 mm) of a structure 

or combustible material unless the fire is contained in a barbecue pit. 

Conditions which could cause a fire to spread within 50 feet (15 240 mm) 

of a structure shall be eliminated prior to ignition. Bonfire permits shall 

only be issued to organizations (Churches, Schools, and other Civic 

Groups) not to private individuals.  

 

N. 

Section 503.2.5 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 503.2.5 shall read as follows: 

  

Dead ends. 

 

Dead-end fire apparatus access roads in excess of 150 feet (45 720 mm) in 

length shall be provided with an approved area for turning around fire 

apparatus per the provisions in accordance with Appendix D, Table 

D103.4. and figure D103.1.  

 

O. 

Section 505.1 of the International Fire Code that reads “Numbers shall be a minimum of  

4 inches high with a minimum stroke width of 0.5 inches” shall be repealed and 

shall read “numbers shall be a minimum of 5 inches high with a minimum stroke 

of 0.5 inches”.   

 

P. 

Section 506.1 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 506.1 shall read as follows: 

  

 Key boxes.  Key boxes shall be installed in all buildings having an 

automatic fire sprinkler system, fire alarm system or any alarm that 

generates a fire department response.  The Fire Code Official shall also 

have the authority to require a key box to be installed in an accessible 

location where access to or within a structure or area is difficult because of 

security. The key box shall be of and approved type and shall contain keys 

to gain necessary access as required by the Fire Code Official. 

Q.  

Section 507.5.1.1 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed  in its entirety and a 

new section 507.5.1.1 shall read as follows. 

   

Hydrant for Fire Sprinkler Systems and Standpipe Systems. Building equipped 

with a standpipe or fire sprinkler system installed in accordance with Section 903 

and 905 shall have a fire hydrant within 100 feet of the FDC (fire department 

connection).  

101



 
RESOLUTION 2012-37      2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE              PAGE   11 
 

R. 

508.5.7 Hydrant Outlet Location shall be added to read as follows: 

Hydrants shall be installed with the center of the outlet cap nut at least 18 

inches above the adjoining final grade. 

 

S.  

Section 905.3.1 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 905.3.1 shall read as follows: 

 

Building height. 

 

Class III standpipe systems shall be installed throughout buildings where 

the floor level of the highest story is located more than 30 feet (9144 mm) 

above the lowest level of the fire department vehicle access, or where the 

floor level of the lowest story is located more than 30 feet (9144 mm) 

below the highest level of fire department vehicle access. A class I, 

Manual Wet, standpipe system shall be installed in building where the 

floor level is of the highest story is located more than 20 feet above the 

lowest level of the fire department vehicle access. 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this             day of                    , 2012. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

CATHY S. BARNETTE 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

 

_______________________________ 

BAILEY YELDING, MAYOR  

 

  ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

DAVID L. COHEN,  

CITY CLERK, MMC 

102



Resolution 2012-38 
 

 

Recreational Trails Grant: Gator Alley Enhancement 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne proposes to construct a multi-use walking trail 

bridge to connect to the Eastern Shore Trail at Gator Alley to provide for the health and 

well-being of the general public and be ADA compliant; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the city intends to make application to the Alabama Department of 

Economic and Community Affairs for grant assistance to continue to develop a walking 

trail by enhancing the Eastern Shore Trail at Gator Alley from the Recreational Trails 

Grant Program; and 

  

 WHEREAS, said programs are limited to funding a maximum of eighty percent 

or ($100,000) of the proposed project cost estimates at ($121,050) which will be used to 

develop the boardwalk at Gator Alley connecting to the Eastern Shore Trail. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Daphne hold in 

reserve in excess of twenty percent ($ 41,050) of the proposed project cost for the 

purpose of matching the Recreational Trails Grant Fund assistance, and 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event that a grant is awarded, the 

City of Daphne understands that it will sign assurances to comply with all applicable 

Federal and State laws, rules and regulations. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this___________ day of ___________, 2012. 

       

 

      ___________________________ 

      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

       

 

      ___________________________ 

      Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

 

103



 

ORDINANCE 2012-30 
 

APROPRIATION OF FUNDS FOR THE ASSISTANCE TO FIREFIGHTERS 

GRANT AWARDED TO THE CITY OF DAPHNE’S FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

WHERE AS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget on 

November 21, 2011; and 

 

WHERE AS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget, the City 

Council has determined that certain appropriation are required and should be approved 

and made part of the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget; and 

 

WHERE AS, The City of Daphne’s Fire Department submitted a grant application in 

2011 for consideration in the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA) and 

Department of Homeland Security’s (DHS) Assistance to Firefighters Grant; and  

 

WHERE AS, FEMA and DHS approved and awarded the Assistance to Firefighters 

Grant to the City of Daphne’s Fire Department in the amount of $55,800 with the 

following cost sharing responsibilities: 

 

90% Federal ($50,220) + 10% City of Daphne ($5,580) = $55,800 

 

WHERE AS, the Daphne Fire Department will be using the awarded grant funds for the 

purchase of following essential equipment: 

 

 Thermal Imager Camera 

 Self-Contained Breathing Apparatuses 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council (the “Council”) of 

Daphne, Alabama (the “City”), that funds in the amount of $5,580 from the General Fund 

are hereby appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget for the 

Assistance to Firefighters grant.    
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR & CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS ______DAY OF _________________, 2012. 

 

 
____________________________________ 

CATHY S. BARNETTE, 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

 

____________________________________ 

BAILEY YELDING, JR., 

MAYOR, CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

DAVID L. COHEN, 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

104



 

ORDINANCE 2012-31 
 

PROFIT DRIVE EXTENTION & LAKE FOREST: RIDGEWOOD DRIVE-PHASE II: 

APPROPRIATION OF DESIGN AND ENGINEERING FUNDS  

 
WHERE AS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget on November 21, 

2011; and 

 

WHERE AS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget, the City Council has 

determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made part of the Fiscal 

Year 2012 Budget; and 

 

WHERE AS, the Profit Drive Extension – Profit Drive to Johnson Road (0.275 miles) and Lake Forest: 

Ridgewood Drive Phase II (1.2 miles) projects need to go out for bid; and 

 

WHERE AS, Design and engineering services in the amount of $106,445 are required to prepare these 

projects for bid: 

 

 Profit Drive Extension    $  20,154 

 Lake Forest: Ridgewood Drive-Phase II $  86,291 

TOTAL $106,445 

 

WHERE AS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City to obtain bids for 

these projects by unanimously passing a motion during the March 19, 2012 City Council Meeting 

authorizing the City to go out for bid on all Fiscal Year 2012 proposed City of Daphne Street 

Improvement Projects. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council (the “Council”) of Daphne, Alabama 

(the “City”), that funds in the amount of $106,445 from the Capital Reserve Fund are hereby appropriated 

and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget for the design and engineering services for the Profit 

Drive Extension and the Lake Forest: Ridgewood Drive-Phase II projects.  
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR & CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS ______DAY OF _________________, 2012. 

 

 

____________________________________ 

CATHY S. BARNETTE, 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

 

____________________________________ 

BAILEY YELDING, JR., 

MAYOR, CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

DAVID L. COHEN, 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

105



ORDINANCE 2012 - 32 
 

Main Street Resurfacing: McAdams to Bayfront -  Mill & Overlay Road 
Project 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City 
to obtain bids for this project and design engineering services in the amount of 
$25,815 were previously approved. 
 
WHEREAS,  the Main Street – McAdams to Bayfront: Mill & Overlay Road project 
( 2.54 miles) went out for bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, an appropriation is needed for the cost of construction -  $815,642.10 
and additional engineering fees - $61,288 (survey/testing/inspection…).   (Total Project 

Cost - $902,745.10). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $876,930.10 from the General Fund are 
appropriated to be transferred to Capital Reserve made a part of the Fiscal Year 
2012 budget for the Main Street – McAdams to Bayfront: Mill & Overlay Road 
project. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________  , 2012. 
 
   
      
                                                                         ________________________________ 

   Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                      
      

      ______________________________ 
                                                                         Bailey Yelding, Jr. , Mayor 
 
       
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

106



ORDINANCE 2012-33 
 
 

Well Road Extension to Highway 13 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Well Road needs to be extended from Public Works Road to County 
Road 13 ( .265 miles) and the project was bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City 
to obtain bids for this project and $21,930 was previously approved for design 
engineering services; and 
 
WHEREAS,   the project was bid and the cost for construction is $207,028.50 and 
additional engineering & testing is $30,400 (Total Project cost is $259,359.50). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $237,429.50 (includes additional engineering + bid 

cost)  from the General Fund are appropriated to be transferred to Capital Reserve 
made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for the Well Road Extension project.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________  , 2012. 
 

 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President    
 
     

_________________________________ 

                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

107


	AGENDA - May 7.pdf
	City Roll Call.pdf
	Council Minutes - April 16.pdf
	Proclamations.pdf
	Reporting of Standing Committees.pdf
	Finance Minutes.pdf
	Building & Property Minutes April 2012.pdf
	Public Works Committee Minutes.pdf
	Beautification Minutes.pdf
	Special Reports.pdf
	BZA Nomination - Larry Cooke.pdf
	DRA Minutes - April 23.pdf
	Planning Commission Minutes.pdf
	Set Public Hearing Info.pdf
	Utility Minutes - APPROVED Mar 2012.pdf
	Utility Minutes - APPROVED SPECIAL MTG 4-24-12.pdf
	Mayors Report.pdf
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report.pdf
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE.pdf
	2012-34 - RES - Main Street-McAdams to Bayfront - 2012.pdf
	2012-35 - RES - Well Road Extension to Hwy 13- 2012.pdf
	2012-36 - RES - 2012 International Building Code 2nd PH.pdf
	2012-37 - RES - 2012 - FireCodeAdoption 2nd PH.pdf
	2012-38 - RES - LWCF - Gator Alley Enhancement  Recreational Trails Grant Resolution.pdf
	2012-30 - ORD - Assistance to Firefighters Grant Appropriation (4 3 12).pdf
	2012-31 - ORD - Profit Drive Extention  Lake Forest - Ridgewood Drive (Phase 2) 4 4 2012.pdf
	2012-32 - ORD - Main Street-McAdams Ave-BF.pdf
	2012-33 - ORD - Well Road Extension to Hwy 13.pdf

